



cityofnovi.org

CITY of NOVI CITY COUNCIL

Agenda Item G
September 15, 2014

SUBJECT: Approval of Ordinance Amendment 14-97.03 to amend the City of Novi Code of Ordinances, at Chapter 4, "Amusements and Entertainments," Article III, "Pinball Arcades and Machines," in order to remove the requirement for an Arcade License (Division 2) and Machine License (Division 3) and to amend the remaining Division 1 (Generally) to delete references to "License" and "Licensee." **SECOND READING**

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: City Clerk *JD*

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL: *[Signature]*

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Ordinance Review Committee met over the course of several meetings to discuss changes to the Arcade License ordinance. The Committee recommended at its August 11, 2014 meeting that Division 2 "Arcade License" and Division 3 "Machine License" be removed completely to eliminate the licensing requirements of Arcade businesses. Division 1 remains because it is currently utilized by the Police Department to govern conduct on the premises and the age of patrons permitted on the premises during specific hours of the day.

The first reading was passed by City Council on August 25, 2014 with some comments regarding Division 1, specifically Section 4-64. Public Safety has explained that currently a complete background check is not performed on every staff member of the Arcade. The background check is only done for the applicant applying for the permit. With that being said, Section 4-64 pertaining to having an adult operator is not accurate as we do not "certify" all employees. The second reading reflects that change, as well as defines that the arcade must comply with the City's noise regulations.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval of Ordinance Amendment 14-97.03 to amend the City of Novi Code of Ordinances, at Chapter 4, "Amusements and Entertainments," Article III, "Pinball Arcades and Machines," in order to remove the requirement for an Arcade License (Division 2) and Machine License (Division 3) and to amend the remaining Division 1 (Generally) to delete references to "License" and "Licensee." **SECOND READING**

	1	2	Y	N
Mayor Gatt				
Mayor Pro Tem Staudt				
Council Member Casey				
Council Member Fischer				

	1	2	Y	N
Council Member Markham				
Council Member Mutch				
Council Member Wrobel				

**Ordinance Amendment 14-97.03
REDLINE**

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF OAKLAND

CITY OF NOVI

ORDINANCE NO. 14-97.03

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF NOVI CODE OF ORDINANCES, AT CHAPTER 4, "AMUSEMENTS AND ENTERTAINMENTS," ARTICLE III, "PINBALL ARCADES AND MACHINES," IN ORDER TO REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT FOR AN ARCADE LICENSE (DIVISION 2) AND MACHINE LICENSE (DIVISION 3) AND TO AMEND THE REMAINING DIVISION 1 (GENERALLY) TO DELETE REFERENCES TO "LICENSE" AND "LICENSEE."

THE CITY OF NOVI ORDAINS:

PART I. That Chapter 4, "Amusements and Entertainments," Article III, "Pinball Arcades and Machines," of the City of Novi Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to **delete** Division 2, "Arcade License" and Division 3, "Machine License," and to remove references to licenses and licensees in Division 1, which shall read as follows in its entirety:

Division 1. Generally

Sec. 4-61. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

~~Licensee means the holder of a license issued pursuant to this article.~~

Operator means proprietor, lessee, manager, or employee of any pinball arcade or business.

Pinball arcade means any place of business or establishment containing two (2) or more pinball machines.

Pinball machine means any mechanical or electrical device which provides amusement or entertainment, including video games, which may be operated or set in motion upon the insertion of a coin or token. This definition shall not include jukeboxes, telephone devices, or machines that sell merchandise.

Premises means a building, or a part of a building where pinball machines are located, under the ownership or control of the operator.

~~Primary business means that business conducted on the premises that produces more than ninety (90) percent of the gross income produced annually by all forms of business conducted on the premises.~~

Sec. 4-62. Inspections of premises.

Each operator ~~or licensee~~ shall, at all times, open each and every portion of the ~~licensed~~ premises for inspection by the police department and other city departments for the purpose of enforcing any provisions of this article.

Sec. 4-63. Operating hours.

The operator ~~or licensee~~ shall not open the ~~licensed~~ premises for business between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 7:30 a.m. Provided, however, the premises may open for business during the aforesaid hours on the granting of a special permit by the city clerk, with the approval of the city police department and fire department, and upon the showing of the licensee that:

- (1) The premises are being used for the holding of a tournament;
- (2) The ~~licensee operator~~ desires the premises to remain open during such hours on a legal holiday; or
- (3) The operator of the premises has been issued a class C license by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for the sale of alcoholic liquor to be consumed on the premises.

Sec. 4-64. Adult operator required.

Each operator ~~or licensee~~ shall have present on the premises, or on such portion of the premises where the pinball arcade is located, as the case may be, at least one (1) adult operator at all times that the premises is open to the public, ~~who has not been convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude and who has been so certified by the police department.~~

Sec. 4-65. Conduct on premises.

No ~~licensee operator~~, by himself, directly or indirectly, or by any servant, agent or employee shall knowingly:

- (1) Permit any disorderly conduct as defined by Act No. 84 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1939 (MCL 750.167), as amended;
- (2) Permit the ~~licensed~~ premises to become a resort for disorderly persons of any type, as defined by Act No. 84 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1939 (MCL 750.167), as amended;

- (3) Permit gambling or the use, possession, or presence of gambling paraphernalia in the premises. The winning of anything of value as a result of the operation of a pinball machine shall constitute gambling. However, gambling shall not include the winning of non-cash tickets, coupons or other representations while playing a "redemption game," as defined in MCL 750.310b, located in a sit-down restaurant establishment with seating for one hundred twenty (120) persons, or more, where such tickets, coupons or other representations are won based upon one or more successful attempts in the operation of a game of skill (not a game of chance), and where the redemption value of a ticket, coupon or other representation of value awarded for the successful single play of a game does not exceed fifteen (15) times the amount charged for a single play of the game or three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$3.75), whichever is less; provided, players may accumulate tickets, coupons or other representations of value for redemption for noncash prizes of a greater value up to, but not exceeding, two hundred fifty dollars (\$250.00) wholesale value.
- (4) Permit intoxicated persons to loiter on the premises;
- (5) Permit the possession or use of any alcoholic liquor on the premises, nor shall the ~~licensed~~ premises be accessible in any way to any place where alcoholic liquor is kept, sold, distributed, or given away. This provision shall not apply while a Michigan Liquor Control Commission license is in effect at the licensed premises;
- (6) Permit the unlawful possession or use of any controlled substance on the premises;
- (7) Permit noise or music to emerge from the ~~licensed~~ premises **in violation of the City's noise regulations.**

Sec. 4-66. Age of persons on premises.

- (a) No person under the age of sixteen (16) years shall be permitted to be on the premises after 10:00 p.m., and all such persons must be accompanied by a parent or legal guardian at all times, except that persons between the ages of thirteen (13) years and sixteen (16) years may be permitted upon the premises without a parent or legal guardian between the hours of:
 - (1) 2:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Fridays;
 - (2) 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Saturdays and legal holidays;
 - (3) 11:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. on Sundays; and

- (4) 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. during summer vacation and other prescribed school vacations (e.g., winter or spring break) common to all school districts within the City of Novi.
- (b) No person under the age of eighteen (18) years shall be permitted to be on the premises during the hours of 7:30 a.m. through 2:30 p.m. on such days as schools within any of the school districts located in the city are open for regular school attendance, unless accompanied by a parent or legal guardian.
- (c) It shall be the responsibility of the licensee-operator to prohibit minor children from the premises in accordance with subsections (a) and (b) above, and failure to do so shall be a violation of this chapter. Any person under the age of eighteen (18) allowed on the premises without a parent or legal guardian shall have in his or her possession proof of age, which may be a school-issued identification card.

Division 2. — Arcade License

Sec. 4-76. Required.

~~No pinball arcade shall be established, maintained, or conducted in the city by any person without first obtaining a license to operate such place from the city clerk, with the approval of the city police department and fire department, and no operator shall allow or permit the use of two (2) or more pinball machines unless a pinball arcade license for such use shall have been obtained from the city clerk, with the approval of the city police department and fire department.~~

Sec. 4-77. Application.

- ~~(a) — Every person desiring to obtain a license for a pinball arcade shall file a written application to the city clerk on forms approved by the city clerk, together with an application fee payable to the city treasurer as is set by resolution of the council. The application shall include the following information: The applicant's age, correct name, post office address and residence, the length of time the applicant has resided within this state, and where, and the applicant's places of residence for the past five (5) years immediately before the time of such application; whether or not the applicant has ever been convicted of any crime involving a controlled substance, alcoholic liquor, minors or any offense involving moral turpitude; and at least five (5) references of reputable citizens of such community wherein the applicant has last resided within this state, and the written recommendations of at least two (2) citizens of such community respecting the applicant's moral character. The applicant shall specify in such application the type of business and the exact location of the premises for which a license is requested.~~

- ~~(b) — In case the applicant for a license required by this division is a corporation authorized to do business in this state, the application shall be made by the agent of such corporation who will have principal charge of the premises established, and such application shall contain all of the statements and furnish all the facts and recommendations in respect to such agent as are required in the case of an individual. Such license to a corporation shall be revocable upon the occurrence of a change in the agent so managing such premises, and a new license may be required before any new agent shall take charge of such premises for such corporation.~~
- ~~(c) — In case of a partnership, each active partner in such business shall join in the application for the license required by this division, and shall furnish all of the information and recommendations required of an individual applicant. Such application shall also contain a diagram with dimensions of the premises on which the business will be conducted, showing the location of each pinball machine on the premises, and each exit from the premises.~~

Sec. 4-78. Inspection of premises.

- ~~(a) — Before any pinball arcade license shall be issued, investigation of the applicant and inspection of the premises shall be made by the fire department, police department, and such other city departments or agencies as may be deemed necessary to determine whether the applicant and the premises fully comply with all pertinent ordinances and regulations.~~
- ~~(b) — Before any pinball arcade license may be recommended for approval by such city departments or agencies, the police department and such other agencies or departments as are deemed necessary shall determine whether the applicant is providing sufficient off-street parking and sufficient aids and regulations whereby vehicular traffic shall not constitute a nuisance or danger. For a standard for such determination, minimum off-street parking facilities shall be the same as required by Appendix A, "Zoning Ordinance," with additional facilities for general peak load parking requirements of the business being operated.~~
- ~~(c) — Before the fire department approves the same, it must determine whether the premises and the location of the pinball machines therein permit safe ingress and egress.~~

Sec. 4-79. Grounds for denial and appeal.

No pinball arcade license shall be issued:

- ~~(1) — Where the individual operator, managing agent of a corporation, or active partner has been convicted of a crime involving a controlled substance, alcoholic liquor, minors or a crime involving moral turpitude;~~
- ~~(2) — For any premises, unless the building code, fire code, and other pertinent provisions of all city ordinances, as far as can be determined, are being complied with;~~
- ~~(3) — For any premises that is located within one thousand (1,000) feet of any school building attended by students below the age of sixteen (16) years of age. Measurement shall be made from front door to front door;~~
- ~~(4) — For any premises that does not provide off-street parking as provided in section 4-78~~
- ~~(5) — For any premises that does not provide space for safe ingress and egress in such premises;~~
- ~~(6) — For any premises that has living quarters with direct entry to the premises;~~
- ~~(7) — For any premises where the primary business conducted on the premises is not a pinball arcade. This provision shall not apply to any hotel, motel or recreational premises such as bowling alleys or skating rinks where a pinball arcade is customarily incidental to the primary business. The determination as to whether a pinball arcade is customarily incidental to the primary business is a question of fact to be determined by the city. This provision shall also not apply to any premises which has a current class C license issued by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises;~~
- ~~(8) — Whenever the denial of such license is necessary for the protection and conservation of the character and social and economic stability of the surrounding area.~~
- ~~(9) — The city clerk shall notify an applicant in writing sent by ordinary first class mail to the applicant at the address provided in the application of any denial of an application including the reasons and/or basis for the denial;~~
- ~~(10) — An applicant may appeal a denial to the city council by serving a written notice of appeal, signed by the applicant, upon the city clerk within fourteen (14) days of the notice of denial. The notice of appeal shall state the basis of the appeal including a statement of the reasons for reversal of the denial. A copy of the notice of denial shall be attached, by the applicant, to the notice of appeal.~~

Sec. 4-80. Review and granting.

- ~~(a) — The city clerk upon receiving an application for a pinball arcade license, if presented in due form, shall review the application for completeness and compliance with the form and content requirements of this article. The city clerk shall notify the applicant of any deficiencies in the application and take no further action on the application until the deficiencies are cured. Upon determining that an application meets the form and content requirements of this article, the city clerk shall forward the application to the city department heads for the police department and fire department for further review, investigation, inspection and compliance with the requirements of this article. Each department, upon completing their respective reviews of an application, shall either approve or deny the application and notify the city clerk of their respective determination including the reasons and/or basis of any denial.~~
- ~~(b) — Upon approval of the application, premises and applicant by the city clerk, police department and fire department, the city clerk shall grant such license to the applicant for a term expiring on the thirty-first of December of each year. All such licenses shall be in such form as the city may prescribe and shall contain the name, address, place of business, the number of pinball machines on the premises, and the date of expiration of the license, and shall be authenticated by the signature of the city clerk.~~
- ~~(c) — The license shall be issued to a specific person, firm, or corporation for a specific location.~~

Sec. 4-81. Fee.

~~The fee to be paid upon the granting of a pinball arcade license shall be as is set by resolution of the council.~~

Sec. 4-82. Display.

~~Each operator or licensee shall, at all times, display the license granted pursuant to this article in a conspicuous place near the entrance to the licensed establishment.~~

Sec. 4-83. Transferability.

~~Whenever the holder of a pinball arcade license desires to affect a change of place of doing business, he shall notify the city clerk and make application for a license for such new place in the same manner as in the first instance, excepting that proof of good character may be dispensed with by the city at the city's discretion. No license issued pursuant to this division shall be assignable or transferable, nor shall any person or entity excepting the person or entity to which it was issued be permitted to do business thereunder either directly or indirectly.~~

Sec. 4-84. Renewal.

~~Any license issued in accordance with this division may be renewed for an additional year upon the same terms and subject to the same requirements as provided in this division for an original license.~~

~~Sec. 4-85. Revocation.~~

~~The city shall have the right to revoke any pinball arcade license once granted or deny annual renewal thereof when it appears to its satisfaction that any operator or licensee has violated this division, any ordinance of the city or statute of the state with regard to the premises where the pinball machines are located, or any other ordinance of the city or statute of the state or of the United States involving controlled substances, alcoholic liquor, minors, or any offense involving moral turpitude. The revocation of any license or the denial of renewal thereof shall not be made without a hearing. Notice shall first be given to the operator or licensee setting forth the time and place of hearing and the reasons for such revocation or denial of renewal of the license.~~

Division 3.—Machine License

~~Sec. 4-96. Required.~~

~~No place of business or establishment in the city shall place, maintain, or locate a pinball machine on its premises without first having obtained a pinball machine license from the city and no operator shall allow or permit the use of a pinball machine unless a license for such use shall have been obtained from the city clerk. The provisions of this division are intended to apply only to places of business or establishments having one (1) pinball machine and do not apply to pinball arcades.~~

~~Sec. 4-97. Application.~~

- ~~(a) — Every person desiring to obtain a pinball machine license shall file a written application to the city clerk on forms approved by the city clerk, together with an application fee as is set by resolution of the council.~~
- ~~(b) — The application shall provide the following information: The applicant's name and post office address and the name and post office address of the business where the pinball machine is to be located. Each application shall also contain a diagram, with dimensions, of the premises in which the business will be located, showing the location of the pinball machine and each exit from the premises.~~
- ~~(c) — In case the applicant is a corporation, the application shall be made by the agent of the corporation who will have principal charge of the premises established.~~
- ~~(d) — In case of a partnership, each active partner in such business shall join in the application for a pinball machine license.~~

Sec. 4-98. Inspection of premises.

~~Before any pinball machine license shall be issued, inspection of the premises shall be made by the fire department. Before any pinball machine license shall be issued, the fire department shall determine whether the applicant is placing the pinball machine in such a location so as to not constitute a nuisance or danger and so as to permit safe ingress to and egress from the premises.~~

Sec. 4-99. Granting.

~~(a) The city clerk, upon receiving an application for a pinball machine license, if presented in due form, and upon being advised by the fire department that the premises conform to the requirements of this division, shall grant such pinball machine license to the applicant for a term expiring on the thirty-first of December of each year. All such licenses shall be in such form as the city may prescribe and shall contain the name, address, place of business, and the date of expiration of the license, and shall be authenticated by the signature of the city clerk.~~

~~(b) The license shall be issued to a specific person, firm, or corporation for a specific location.~~

Sec. 4-100. Changing location of pinball machine.

~~No pinball machine shall be moved from an approved location or to another location on the premises, unless the operator shall have first obtained the written approval of the fire department. If in the discretion of the fire department, it is necessary to inspect the proposed new location of the pinball machine to determine whether such new location constitutes a nuisance or danger, and to determine whether such new location permits safe ingress to and egress from the premises, the operator shall pay an inspection fee as is set by resolution of the council to the treasurer of the city to defray the cost of such inspection.~~

Sec. 4-101. Transferability.

~~Whenever the holder of a pinball machine license desires to affect a change of place of doing business, he shall notify the city clerk and make application for a license for such new place in the same manner as in the first instance. No license issued pursuant to this division shall be assignable or transferable, nor shall any person or entity excepting the person or entity to which it was issued be permitted to do business thereunder either directly or indirectly.~~

Sec. 4-102. Renewal.

~~Any license issued in accordance with this division may be renewed for an additional year upon the same terms and subject to the same requirements as provided in this division for an original license.~~

Sec. 4-103. Revocation.

~~The city shall have the right to revoke any pinball machine license once granted or deny annual renewal thereof when it appears to its satisfaction that any operator or licensee has violated this division, any ordinance of the city or statute of the state with regard to the premises where the pinball machines are located, or any other ordinance of the city or statute of the state or of the United States involving controlled substances, alcohol, minors, or any offense involving moral turpitude. The revocation of any license or the denial of renewal thereof shall not be made without a hearing. Notice shall first be given to the operator or licensee setting forth the time and place of hearing and the reasons for such revocation or denial of renewal of the license.~~

PART II. Severability. Should any section, subdivision, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, the validity of the Ordinance as a whole, or in part, shall not be affected other than the part invalidated.

PART III. Savings Clause. The amendment of the Novi Code of Ordinances set forth in this Ordinance does not affect or impair any act done, offense committed, or right accruing, accrued, or acquired or liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment, pending or incurred prior to the amendment of the Novi Code of Ordinances set forth in this Ordinance.

PART IV. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

PART V. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance are ordered to take effect following publication in the manner prescribed by the Charter of the City of Novi.

PART VI. Adoption. This ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the Novi City Council in a meeting thereof duly held and called on the ___ day of _____, 2014, in order to be given publication in the manner prescribed by the Charter of the City of Novi.

Moved by _____ and supported by _____.

Robert J. Gatt, Mayor

Maryanne Cornelius, City Clerk

Certificate of Adoption

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the ordinance adopted at the regular meeting of the Novi City Council held on the ____ day of _____, 2014.

**Ordinance Amendment 14-97.03
CLEAN**

STATE OF MICHIGAN
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
CITY OF NOVI
ORDINANCE NO. 14-97.03

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF NOVI CODE OF ORDINANCES, AT CHAPTER 4, "AMUSEMENTS AND ENTERTAINMENTS," ARTICLE III, "PINBALL ARCADES AND MACHINES," IN ORDER TO REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT FOR AN ARCADE LICENSE (DIVISION 2) AND MACHINE LICENSE (DIVISION 3) AND TO AMEND THE REMAINING DIVISION 1 (GENERALLY) TO DELETE REFERENCES TO "LICENSE" AND "LICENSEE."

THE CITY OF NOVI ORDAINS:

PART I. That Chapter 4, "Amusements and Entertainments," Article III, "Pinball Arcades and Machines," of the City of Novi Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to **delete** Division 2, "Arcade License" and Division 3, "Machine License," and to remove references to licenses and licensees in Division 1, which shall read as follows in its entirety:

Division 1. Generally

Sec. 4-61. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Operator means proprietor, lessee, manager, or employee of any pinball arcade or business.

Pinball arcade means any place of business or establishment containing two (2) or more pinball machines.

Pinball machine means any mechanical or electrical device which provides amusement or entertainment, including video games, which may be operated or set in motion upon the insertion of a coin or token. This definition shall not include jukeboxes, telephone devices, or machines that sell merchandise.

Premises means a building, or a part of a building where pinball machines are located, under the ownership or control of the operator.

Sec. 4-62. Inspections of premises.

Each operator shall, at all times, open each and every portion of the premises for inspection by the police department and other city departments for the purpose of enforcing any provisions of this article.

Sec. 4-63. Operating hours.

The operator shall not open the premises for business between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 7:30 a.m. Provided, however, the premises may open for business during the aforesaid hours on the granting of a special permit by the city clerk, with the approval of the city police department and fire department, and upon the showing of the licensee that:

- (1) The premises are being used for the holding of a tournament;
- (2) The operator desires the premises to remain open during such hours on a legal holiday; or
- (3) The operator of the premises has been issued a class C license by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for the sale of alcoholic liquor to be consumed on the premises.

Sec. 4-64. Adult operator required.

Each operator shall have present on the premises, or on such portion of the premises where the pinball arcade is located, as the case may be, at least one (1) adult operator at all times that the premises is open to the public..

Sec. 4-65. Conduct on premises.

No operator, by himself, directly or indirectly, or by any servant, agent or employee shall knowingly:

- (1) Permit any disorderly conduct as defined by Act No. 84 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1939 (MCL 750.167), as amended;
- (2) Permit the premises to become a resort for disorderly persons of any type, as defined by Act No. 84 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1939 (MCL 750.167), as amended;
- (3) Permit gambling or the use, possession, or presence of gambling paraphernalia in the premises. The winning of anything of value as a result of the operation of a pinball machine shall constitute gambling. However, gambling shall not include the winning of non-cash tickets, coupons or other representations while playing a "redemption game," as defined in MCL 750.310b, located in a sit-down restaurant establishment with seating for one hundred twenty (120) persons, or more, where such tickets, coupons or other representations are won based upon one or more

successful attempts in the operation of a game of skill (not a game of chance), and where the redemption value of a ticket, coupon or other representation of value awarded for the successful single play of a game does not exceed fifteen (15) times the amount charged for a single play of the game or three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$3.75), whichever is less; provided, players may accumulate tickets, coupons or other representations of value for redemption for noncash prizes of a greater value up to, but not exceeding, two hundred fifty dollars (\$250.00) wholesale value.

- (4) Permit intoxicated persons to loiter on the premises;
- (5) Permit the possession or use of any alcoholic liquor on the premises, nor shall the premises be accessible in any way to any place where alcoholic liquor is kept, sold, distributed, or given away. This provision shall not apply while a Michigan Liquor Control Commission license is in effect at the licensed premises;
- (6) Permit the unlawful possession or use of any controlled substance on the premises;
- (7) Permit noise or music to emerge from the premises in violation of the City's noise regulations.

Sec. 4-66. Age of persons on premises.

- (a) No person under the age of sixteen (16) years shall be permitted to be on the premises after 10:00 p.m., and all such persons must be accompanied by a parent or legal guardian at all times, except that persons between the ages of thirteen (13) years and sixteen (16) years may be permitted upon the premises without a parent or legal guardian between the hours of:
 - (1) 2:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Fridays;
 - (2) 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Saturdays and legal holidays;
 - (3) 11:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. on Sundays; and
 - (4) 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. during summer vacation and other prescribed school vacations (e.g., winter or spring break) common to all school districts within the City of Novi.
- (b) No person under the age of eighteen (18) years shall be permitted to be on the premises during the hours of 7:30 a.m. through 2:30 p.m. on such days as schools within any of the school districts located in the city are open for regular school attendance, unless accompanied by a parent or legal guardian.

- (c) It shall be the responsibility of the operator to prohibit minor children from the premises in accordance with subsections (a) and (b) above, and failure to do so shall be a violation of this chapter. Any person under the age of eighteen (18) allowed on the premises without a parent or legal guardian shall have in his or her possession proof of age, which may be a school-issued identification card.

PART II. Severability. Should any section, subdivision, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, the validity of the Ordinance as a whole, or in part, shall not be affected other than the part invalidated.

PART III. Savings Clause. The amendment of the Novi Code of Ordinances set forth in this Ordinance does not affect or impair any act done, offense committed, or right accruing, accrued, or acquired or liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment, pending or incurred prior to the amendment of the Novi Code of Ordinances set forth in this Ordinance.

PART IV. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

PART V. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance are ordered to take effect following publication in the manner prescribed by the Charter of the City of Novi.

PART VI. Adoption. This ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the Novi City Council in a meeting thereof duly held and called on the ___ day of _____, 2014, in order to be given publication in the manner prescribed by the Charter of the City of Novi.

Moved by _____ and supported by _____.

Robert J. Gatt, Mayor

Maryanne Cornelius, City Clerk

Certificate of Adoption

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the ordinance adopted at the regular meeting of the Novi City Council held on the ____ day of _____, 2014.

Maryanne Cornelius, City Clerk